M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 26, 2002
9:17 AM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 17, Side A
SFC 02 # 17, Side B
SFC 02 # 18, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approxinmately 9:17 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Loren Lenman

Senator Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donal d 4 son

Al so Attending: SKIFF LOBAUGH, Human Resource Manager, Personnel
Ofice, Legislative Admnistrative Services, Legislative Affairs
Agency; BARBARA CRAVER, Attorney, Legislative Legal Counsel,
Legislative Legal and Research Services, Legislative Affairs
Agency; ANNALEE MCCONNELL, Director, Ofice of Mnagenent and
Budget, Ofice of the Governor; CANDACE BROWNER, Legislative
Liaison, Ofice of the Comm ssioner, Departnent of Corrections;

Attendi ng via Tel econference: From None: JOE MASON, University of
Al aska- Fai r banks, Northwest Canpus; From Anchorage: ROSE MJUNAFQ
Crim nal Justice Pl anner, | nmat e Pr ogr ans, Di vi si on of
Institutions, Departnent of Corrections; BRUCE Rl CHARDS, Speci al
Assistant, Ofice of the Conm ssioner, Departnent of Corrections;
ROBERT BUTTCANE, Legislative and Adm nistrative Liaison, D vision
of Juvenile Justice, Departnent of Health and Social Services.

SUMVARY | NFORVATI ON

SCR 29- H RI NG FREEZE

SFC- 02 (1) 02/ 26/ 02



The Committee heard from the Legislative Affairs Agency and the
O fice of Managenent and Budget. The bill was held in Commttee.

SB 223- PRI SONERS: PAROLE/ GOOD Tl ME

The Commttee heard fromthe sponsor, the University of Al aska and
the Departnent of Corrections. The bill was held in Conmittee.

SB  97- PROBATI ON AND PAROLE FEES

The Conmittee heard fromthe sponsor, the Departnment of Corrections
and the Departnment of Health and Social Services. The bill was held
in Commttee.

#SCR29

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 29
Rel ating to urging the Governor to institute a hiring freeze
on state governnent.

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

Co-Chair Kelly opined that when requesting a hiring freeze, there
are conplexities to the issue that are not imedi ately apparent.
Therefore, he requested the Division of Legal and Research Services
and the Division of Personnel to comment on the matter.

SKI FF  LOBAUGH, Human Resource Manager, Per sonnel Ofice,
Legislative Adm nistrative Services, Legislative Affairs Agency,
testified that it is comon for managers to assist with the duties
of other positions during a tenporary hiring freeze. He told of a
di sadvantage in that if this practice continued over a |length of
time, managerial positions could change. He spoke of Fair Labor
St andards and job classifications and the percentage of tine spent
performng clerical duties, which could nake a manager enpl oyee
eligible for overtine conpensati on.

Co-Chair Kelly asked the specific percentage of tine spent on
clerical duties whereby the position is no |onger considered
pr of essi onal and exenpt from Fair Labor Standards.

BARBARA CRAVER, Attorney, Legislative Legal Counsel, Legislative
Legal and Research Services, Legislative Affairs Agency, testified
the amount is established in case law and is between 20 and 50
percent. She stressed the issue is that an enployee's job duties

SFC- 02 (2) 02/ 26/ 02



regularly involve nonprofessional duties, the status as a
profession could be I ost and the position could subsequently becone
subj ect to overtinme conpensati on.

Co-Chair Kelly comented that becoming liable for overtine
conpensation for managers coul d defeat the cost saving purpose of a
hiring freeze.

Co-Chair Kelly pointed out that if this resolution were passed, the
Executive Branch is not required to inplenent it because of the
Separation of Powers. He referenced another Senate resolution
relating to a constitutional amendnent to allow the Legislature to
enact a hiring freeze, which is currently in the Senate State
Affairs Conmttee.

Ms. Craver replied that if the Adm nistration decided to institute
a hiring freeze, a nunber of statutory changes woul d be necessary,
al t hough these could be tenporary.

Senat or Wl ken referenced page 1, line 8 and 9 of the resol ution,
whi ch reads as follows.

VWHEREAS t he proposed fiscal year 2003 budget contains an
increase of 858 full-time positions fromthe current fiscal
year, at a cost of $115, 000, 000; and

Senator W/ ken asked if these positions are funded wth genera
funds.

Co-Chair Kelly stated that not all the positions would be funded
w th general funds.

Senator W /I ken suggested the funding sources of the positions
shoul d be clarified.

Senat or Austernman asked if those positions funded from other
sources require general funds for nedical and retirenent benefits
packages and whether this cost is reflected in the $1.5 mllion.

Co-Chair Kelly stressed this resolution is not intended to "beat up
on the Governor". He noted that the increased nunber of positions
is partially because of legislative action. She requested Ms.
McConnel |l address Senator WIlken's and Senator Austerman's
guestions in her testinony.

ANNALEE MCCONNELL, Director, Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget,

Ofice of the Governor, spoke to the purpose of a hiring freeze at
this tine. She surmised that sone feel that before additional

SFC- 02 (3) 02/ 26/ 02



revenue sources could be considered, it nust be denonstrated to the
public that existing resources are utilized wi sely. She referenced
the hiring freeze instituted in Alaska in 1999 because of a
significant reduction in oil prices, and hiring freezes instituted
in other states experiencing "energency situations" caused by "a
sudden precipitous drop in their revenues." By contrast, she stated
the situation currently in Al aska has been known for sone tine,
which is the need to address the fiscal gap with both budget cuts
and revenue mneasures.

Ms. McConnell said the question is whether a hiring freeze would
provi de "good cost control"™ and also whether it would provide
assurance to the public.

Ms. McConnel |l addressed the cost control issue, saying there is not
a surplus of state enployees who are not perform ng any work or
i nportant work. She stated that five years of budget reductions and
a past hiring freeze has "concentrated the effort quite
significantly" and forced many agencies to determ ne how to perform
necessary functions with fewer people.

Co- Chair Donl ey asked how many state enpl oyees were rel eased "non-
voluntarily" i.e. were fired.

Ms. McConnell did not have that infornation.

Co-Chair Donl ey requested exanples of how the Admi nistration is
attaining efficiency, whether through job reassignnents, etc.

Ms. McConnell replied there have been several consolidations within
departnments, such as the Tax Division, which perforns with fewer
managers and the Departnent of Labor and Wbrkforce Devel opnent,
whi ch has instituted cross training of inspectors.

Ms. McConnell asserted a hiring freeze does not guarantee budget
reductions in specific areas. She noted this resolution exenpts
those positions related to health and safety. She commented it nust
then be determ ned what constitutes health and safety. She |isted
Al aska State Troopers and the necessary adm nistrative support in
the crime | ab, investigations and payroll.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if there have been | ay-offs.
Co-Chair Donley said the case has been argued that efficiencies
have been nade that that the state needs every person currently

enployed He asked the nunber of enpl oyees dism ssed over the past
year to "maximze the productivity of the workforce"

SFC- 02 (4) 02/ 26/ 02



Ms. McConnell spoke to difficulties due to position vacancies,
whi ch she said she woul d address | ater in her testinony.

Ms. McConnell informed that paying overtime to existing enployees
is nore expensive then hiring new enployees. She told of the 55
correctional officer vacancies in the Departnment of Corrections,
the 15 percent vacancy rate in probation officers, 17 nedical
positions and five percent vacancy rate for admnistrative
positions. She stressed that the admnistrative staff "has not kept
pace”" with the overall growh of the nunber of prisoners. The
Department of Law, she continued, has had a 39 percent turnover
rate in the Grimnal Division since January 1, 2000. She enphasi zed
that a hiring freeze would inpact the Departnent's ability to hire
graduates in the fall, when nost are hired. She also rem nded of
difficulties in hiring and retai ning nurses. In addition, she noted
t he Legi sl ature approved funding for a new hearing officer position
in the Departnent of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent to address the
backl og of Workers Conpensation O ains. However, she inforned that
another hiring officer position has been vacated and a hiring
freeze instituted at this time would negate the effect of the
addi ti onal position.

She al so pointed out that new enpl oyees require a period of tine
before they are able to fully conplete their duties and that the
inpact of a hiring freeze would be realized in future delivery of
services as well as in the short term

Ms. MConnell spoke to the conplex nmatter of general fund
positions. She told of a general funded position in the Labor
Mar ket I nformati on Section of the Departnent of Labor and Wrkforce
Devel opnent, which generates over $550, 000, 000 federal funds.

Ms. McConnell next addressed public perception and the difficulties
experienced during the past hiring freeze when non-general funded
positions continued to be advertised. She stated it is also a
m sperception as to the inportance of general funded positions.

Ms. MConnell asserted Alaska has instituted budget reduction
measures before many of the states that are currently instituting
hiring freezes. She suggested the Legislature could identify
functions and nodify statutes to reduce the level of certain
servi ces.

Ms. McConnell rem nded of the FY 02 budget Conference Committee
intent that although funds woul d be approved for various increases,
the total position count would not be adjusted. She said this
decision required the additional positions to be accounted in the
FY 03 Governor's budget.

SFC- 02 (5) 02/ 26/ 02



Ms. MConnell referenced a handout: Understanding the FY 2003
Budget, Analysis of Position Changes [copy on file], which she said
addresses the questions raised by Senator WIken and Senator
Austerman. She pointed out that the aforenentioned figure of 858
new positions is inaccurate because it "di sregarded” many positions
al t hough funds had been approved by the Legislature. She inforned
that of the 536 new positions included the Governor's proposed
budget, 116 are either federally funded or self-supporting. Another
75 of those positions, she said, were previously part tine
positions; 12 new positions are for prograns or facilities
previously approved by the Legislature; and 29 new positions in the
Governor's Q| Safety and Devel opnent Initiative are to address the
aging pipeline and other oil and gas facilities and to streanline
the permtting process. She continued that 11 new positions
proposed for the Departnment of Corrections are intended to neet the
i ncrease probation officer and child protection casel oads.

Ms. MConnell remarked that the Admnistration continues to
recogni ze that there is a need to assure the public that funds are
spent w sely. However, she asserted that the "primary issue right
now i s addressing the revenue side of the equation.”

Co-Chair Kelly referenced a conversation held in Conmttee a week
prior relating to the specifics of the budget and the difficulties
for the Legislature at finding efficiencies. He conmented that the
sanme applies to a hiring freeze. He stated he would not presune to
tell the Governor the best nethod to inplenent a hiring freeze.
However, he hoped to enter a dialog on the matter.

Co-Chair Kelly stressed the nunber of positions has increased by
1,200 since 1995. He qualified he did not dispute the inportance of
many of these positions and noted that sone of these positions are
the result of legislative action. Regardless, he surm sed that a
hiring freeze is a commobn sense response to a growi ng governnent in
times of a fiscal gap. He wanted to reach an agreenent with the
Adm nistration as to how a hiring freeze coul d best be inpl enented.

Ms. McConnell reiterated there is a disagreenent about whether a
hiring freeze is the best solution. She tal ked about the unfairness
of requiring enployees funded with general funds to perform the
wor k of one and one-half positions while other enployees working in
non- general funded positions are not. She noted enpl oyee contracts
prohibit this practice and that it would be unfair to the public as
well as to enpl oyees.

Co-Chair Kelly did not disagree and requested assistance in
crafting a hiring freeze to avoid the problens M. MConnell

SFC- 02 (6) 02/ 26/ 02



nment i oned.
Ms. McConnel |l asked the purpose.

Co-Chair Kelly responded the purpose would be to slow the growt h of

government in light of a $1.3 billion fiscal gap. He asserted that
a hiring freeze is a reasonabl e response of managenent in tines of
a budget shortfall. He pointed out the Governor has proposed

i ncreased spending every year except one, when there has been a
revenue shortfall.

Ms. McConnell stressed the Legislature has approved each of those
budgets. She expressed that iif the Legislature wants the
Adm nistration to stop certain functions, the statutes establishing
t hose services shoul d be anended.

Co-Chair Kelly responded, "Act |ike an executive," and "take hold
of this problemand begin to do something about it rather than just
passi ng out noney like it's Christmastine."

Ms. McConnel | pointed out many vacant positions could not be filled
because pay scal es and conpensati on packages are not commensurate
with the federal government and the private sector, or because or a
short supply in trained workers for certain jobs. She stressed that
a hiring freeze prohibiting the Admnistration fromrecruiting for
t hese positions woul d conpound the problem

Co-Chair Kelly noted this resolution is "fairly general"™ and does
not restrict recruitnment.

Ms. McConnell gave an exanpl e of accounting clerk positions, which
the Legislature could determne to not be health and safety
rel ated. She warned the system could not function w thout basic
adm ni strative support.

Senat or Ward asked the nunber of new positions added since 1996.
Ms. McConnell did not have that information.

Senat or Ward wanted to know the nunber of new positions requested
since the 1999-hiring freeze.

Ms. McConnell responded a position analysis has been prepared each
of the last three or four fiscal years. She noted sone positions
are a result of federal transportation funding and other non-
general fund sources.

Senat or Ward asked if since 1999 any non-essential positions have

SFC- 02 (7) 02/ 26/ 02



been added. If not, he suggested this resolution is unnecessary.

Ms. MConnell renmarked the question is what positions are
necessary, listing correctional officers and crine |lab staff. She
enphasi zed the Legislature and the Executive Branch reached the
deci sions regarding specific additional positions, jointly. She
mai ntai ned that the addition of social workers, and other such
positions are necessary.

Senator Ward did not disagree, but questioned the addition of
manageri al positions.

Senat or Hof f man conpared Al aska's approxi mately one billion dollar
fiscal gap to the $1.6 billion fiscal gap of the State of
Washi ngton, noting that although a hiring freeze 1is being
considered for Wshington, additional revenue sources are under
consideration as well. He comrented that the deficit in Al aska of
is nore significant due to the | ower popul ation.

Senat or Hof fman indicated a hiring freeze, delayed pay raises and
ot her proposals are reactions to the budget problem He remarked he
woul d be nore supportive of the proposed neasures if he were able
to "see the light at the end of the tunnel." He explained this nust
i ncl ude consi deration of new revenues, rather than only a spending
limt.

Senat or Hof fman referenced a survey published in the Juneau Enpire
on Monday February 25, 2002, which indicated broad support of
addressing the fiscal gap.

SFC 02 # 17, Side B 10:04 AM

Senat or Hof f man warned. "W don't have the tinme, M. Chairman, to
be sitting around and hoping that sonmething big is going to happen
out of the blue. W need to be a little bit nore active in the
concerns of the econony of the state and the services that we are
obligated to provide to the citizens of the state.”

Ms McConnel | added that between 1990 and 1997, the Washi ngton state
general fund budget increased 33 percent, whereas the general fund
budget for Alaska was reduced .6 percent during the sanme tine
period. She suggested that a hiring freeze m ght be reasonable in
Washi ngton due to this growth. She noted that because another state
is inplenmenting a hiring freeze it is not necessarily advi sable for
Al aska to do |ikew se.

SFC- 02 (8) 02/ 26/ 02



Co-Chair Kelly agreed this was not a valid reason to inplenent a
hiring freeze, but noted it is not uncomon to address budget
shortfalls with a hiring freeze. He asked if the w tness considered
the 1999-hiring freeze successful.

Ms. McConnell responded it reduced the growth in the nunber of
enpl oyees. However, she stated the state is currently having
difficulties in filling existing vacancies. She reiterated the
i ssue regardi ng non-general fund positions that continued to be
adverti sed.

Co-Chair Kelly suggested that showi ng that the 1999 hiring freeze
was unsuccessful would be an effective argunent against this
resol ution.

Ms. McConnel | asked which positions the Legislature could recomend
shoul d be vacant.

Co-Chair Kelly remarked the issue relates to cooperation between
the Legislature and the Executive Branch in meking budget
deci si ons.

Senat or Austerman addressed the 75 positions changing from part
time to full time and asked if the positions were originally
created through federal funding.

Ms. McConnell answered that in sone cases three part tine positions
woul d be converted into one or two full tinme positions; other
changes are the result of increased workloads. She pointed out the
data does not report the deletion of part time positions.

Co-Chair Donley renmarked the per capita spending argunment is an
"excuse" of the Executive Branch to "do nothing". He infornmed the
per capita spending of Alaska is approximately $9, 000, conpared to
the state of Hawaii with the next highest per capita spending of
approxi mately $5,000. He partially attributed this to significant
oil revenues generated in the 1980s.

Co-Chair Kelly noted the Al aska Constitution requires this state to
provi de nore services than other states.

Co- Chair Donl ey agreed but stressed Al aska spends nore per capita
on education then any state.

Senator W1 ken comented that "stealing" from"working people" and

smal | businesses as the first step to solving the state's fiscal
problem is actually an oncoming train at the end of the tunnel.

SFC- 02 (9) 02/ 26/ 02



Senator WIken asked for reconciliation between the 18, 300
positions listed by the D vision of Legislative Finance as approved
by the Legislature for FY 02, and 19,339 positions cited by the
O fice of the Governor

Ms. MConnell explained that although the Conference Committee
aut hori zed funding for new positions, the position count was not
i ncreased.

Co-Chair Donley again spoke to the conparison of per capita
spending in the State of Washi ngton and the State of Al aska.

Ms. McConnell noted Al aska's expenditures are higher because of
constitutional requirements. She stated Al aska spends nore for
education then nost states. She also pointed out the unified court
systemrequires nore state funds.

Ms. McConnell conpared current per capita spending in Al aska to the
anount spent in 1979 informng that, adjusted for inflation, the
state spends $1, 100 | ess. She agreed there were spending increases
in the 1980s but stressed decreases have been nade since then and
spending has not "kept pace" wth population increases. She
enphasi zed the question is "what is right for us today".

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Comrittee to await a
constitutional anmendnment resolution on the sane subject.

#SB223

CS FOR SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BILL NO 223(JUD)

"An Act |limting the award of good tinme and restricting
rel ease on mandatory parole for prisoners serving certain
sentences who fail to attain certain mninum educational
standards; providing that prisoners having attained or
attai ning those educational standards receive good tine awards
and availability of release on mandatory parole of one-third
of the term or terms of inprisonment rounded off to the
nearest day; and providing for an effective date.”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

Co- Chair Donl ey, sponsor, testified this is a "famliar concept”
that woul d encourage prisoners who do not already have a high
school education to obtain their General Equival ency D pl oma (GED)
while in prison. He explained the incentive would be a reduction in
t he anmount of good time, or non-discretionary parole, available. He

SFC- 02 (10) 02/ 26/ 02



also pointed out the state would be required to make such
educati onal opportunities avail able.

Co-Chair Donley infornmed that Al aska has the "npbst generous"” good
time provisions in the United States, noting a person sentenced to
ten years could be paroled after serving 6 2/3 years. He stated the
nati onal standard is 85 percent conpared to 75 percent in Al aska.
He qualified that Al aska |aws are tougher for sonme offenses.

Co-Chair Donley sunmarized the goal of this legislation is to
encourage offenders to obtain their education. He referenced
studi es showing that the rate of recidivismis directly related to
educati on.

Co-Chair Donley stated it is reasonable to require that parol ees
have the ability to read and wite. He said this does not unfairly
penal i ze those i nmates who do not obtain a GED because the anount
of good tine allowed for their sentences would be the nationa
average. He added that not providing such a high |level of good tine
is reasonable because studies show an increased |ikelihood of
illiterate offenders reentering the crimnal justice system

Co-Chair Donley noted the State of Florida has instituted a simlar
program at an estimated savings of $1.9 nmillion due to reduced
recidivism He qualified Al aska has fewer inmates and the anount
woul d therefore be | ower.

Co-Chair Donley spoke of his efforts to determ ne the savings,
which are not reflected in the fiscal notes. He noted the
Department of Corrections has attenpted to estimte the cost of
housi ng the approximately 16 i nmates per year who woul d not obtain
a GED. He inforned the average annual cost per inmate is $27, 000,
whi ch woul d total approximtely $400, 000. He conpared this amount
to the costs involved with the 41 percent national re-incarceration
rate of offenders wi thout a high school education. He cal cul ated
that of the 111 inmates this legislation would apply to, less the
16 who would remain incarcerated for a |onger period, and assum ng
t he si x-percent success rate experienced in the State of Florida,
approximately six fornmer Al aska inmates would not re-offend as a
result of obtaining their GED. He qualified the incarceration costs
woul d be higher but stressed the cost savings of the six successful
i nmates woul d offset that ampunt. He |listed the costs of crine to
society and injuries to victinms of the nmultiple crinmes that m ght
be conmtted before an offender is apprehended, plus the expenses
of the crimnal justice system

Co-Chair Donley stressed the only reason to not pass this
l egislation is the potential cost of inmates renmaining in prison

SFC- 02 (11) 02/ 26/ 02



| onger. However, he enphasized the possibility of significant
savi ngs from reduced recidivism

Co- Chair Donl ey asked and answered, "lIs it the right thing to do?
Absol utely."

Co-Chair Donley asserted educational opportunities as part of
restitution is mandated by the state Constitution. He noted other
states are operating simlar prograns with success. He indicated he
intended to performadditional research on the recidivismrate in
Alaska in order to accurately calculate the potential savings
i nvol ved.

Co-Chair Donley stated that w thhol ding the permanent fund divi dend
for an additional year fromthose who have comm tted serious crine,
woul d "nore then fund" the additional incarceration expenses of the
i nmat es who woul d receive reduced good tinme. He suggested such a
proposal could be incorporated into this bill, although he
recommended separate |egislation.

Senator W/l ken asked if this bill is identical to legislation
considered in a previous session.

Co-Chair Donley answered it 1is and explained the earlier
| egi sl ati on was introduced during a year when no |legislation with
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes was passed.

Senator G een asked for clarification of Section 2(a)(1)(A) of the
commttee substitute, which gives exenptions to the GED provision
for those who al ready have a hi gh school education, are incapable
of attaining a diploma, do not speak English, or are of a certain
age or social background.

Co-Chair Donley affirmed and noted this | anguage is consistent with
assunptions nmade by the Departnent of Corrections and reflected in
an assessnment contained in the fiscal note.

Co- Chair Donl ey explained Section 2 and detailed the process of
granting good tinme credit of one-third of the sentence for inmates
who have a high school education or are deternmined to be incapable
of receiving such. Qthers, he continued, would receive one-sixth
good time credit unless they obtain a GED while incarcerated.

Senator Hoffman comented the conmittee substitute is an
i nprovenent over the original bill. He spoke to the unquantifiable
expense of those inmates who do not obtain a GED and subsequently
serve longer portions of their sentences. He suggested performng a
two to three year denonstration project in a controlled setting

SFC- 02 (12) 02/ 26/ 02



before enacting legislation to identify and rectify concerns. He
agreed it has been proven that people with a higher education are
less likely to commt crinmes and are nore productive citizens.
However, he asserted that placing these assunptions into law is
excessi ve.

Senator Ward supported this bill. He stated that a denonstration
project has nerit, although not as much nerit as would a | aw.

Senator Ward stated that people who are incarcerated have
"problens” with work ethic and educational ability. He asserted
that an overriding factor for a prisoner is "how nmuch tinme do they
have; when can they get out." He stated that a vast majority of
inmates performcertain actions if they know doing so could reduce
the length of their stay.

Senator Ward told of inmates he has encountered who enbrace
religion, sobriety or "anything that the system gives themin order
to make the system happy” and obtain release. He renmarked that a
benefit is that occasionally, while "pulling this con upon society,
they get caught up in it and get better".

Senator Ward expressed this | egislation addresses those i nmates who
had problens that resulted in them not obtaining a high schoo

education. He commented that many of these people are "getting
through Iife because they have wits, they are very smart, but they
don't have the foundation and the ability."” He said these people do
not want others to know that they are unable to read and that this
is one reason they "turn to crine".

Senator Ward predicted that if education were offered as an
i ncentive, those inmates would "come to the table" even if it neans
admtting they are unable to read well or perform nmathematica
functi ons.

JOE MASQON, University of Al aska-Fairbanks, Northwest Canpus,
testified via teleconference from Nonme in support of the bill and
stressed that statistics prove education reduces recidivism He
told of teaching audio conference college courses to students
incarcerated at Anvil Mountain Correctional Center and shared the
story of one forner inmate student, who |ater pursued further
education after being rel eased and was voted Student of the Year at
the Northwest Canpus. He attested this person today is not the
"anger-filled individual" he was before receiving an education. He
stressed audio conferencing and correspondence courses are
effective nethods of providing education to inmates.

M. Mason suggested that the i nmates who receive an exenption from

SFC- 02 (13) 02/ 26/ 02



the GED requirenent due to |anguage, social, age or intelligence
| evel s should also be required to pursue and neet "neasurable
education objectives to inprove their skills."

RCSE MUNAFO, Crim nal Justice Planner, Innmate Prograns, D vision of
I nstitutions, Depart ment of Corrections, testified Vi a
t el econference from Anchorage that no one believes education is not
"a good thing" and that it would contribute to productivity.

SFC 02 # 18, Side A 10:52 AM

Ms. Munafo warned of the fiscal ramfications of this |egislation
She stated that in 1987 or 1988 the budget for crimnal education
efforts was reduced by one-hal f, although the i nmate popul ati on has
continued to increase and she did not see how the objectives of
this bill could be acconplished within the current |evel of
f undi ng.

Senat or Hof fman asked if the w tness supports the |egislation.

Ms. Minafo did not. She suggested other nethods, such as an
incentive provision allowi ng inmates to earn additional good tine.

Senat or Hof f man asked if the w tness woul d endorse a denonstration
proj ect.

Ms. Munafo replied that although she had not considered it, she
woul d support it.

Senat or Ward asked how many prisoners in Al aska have been refused
an opportunity to receive a GED due to budget restraints.

Ms. Munafo did not know of any although noted there is a wait |ist,
whi ch varies with each institution.

Senat or Ward asked the average tinme on a wait |ist.

Ms. Munafo was unsure.

Senator Ward clarified the witness' testinony that because of
budget constraints, this legislation would result in additiona
costs. However, understood that educational opportunities were
currently avail abl e.

BRUCE RI CHARDS, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner
Department of Corrections, testified via teleconference from

SFC- 02 (14) 02/ 26/ 02



Anchorage that the increased cost to the Departnent would be the
| onger incarceration of those who do not obtain their GED.

Senator Ward stated there would be no increase to the cost of the
educati onal program

M. Richards replied there currently is a wait list and that in
order accommodate the additional inmates, funding for additional
"contract hours" of educators would be necessary.

Senator Ward asked if the wtness saw providing additional
educational opportunities for inmtes to be "a problent.

M. R chards did not. He preferred an incentive process of allow ng
prisoners to earn additional good time rather than the proposed
nmet hod that woul d renmove good tinme initially and require inmates to
earn that tinme back. He understood the system in the State of
Fl ori da provides additional good tinme for those who receive a GED
rather than a reduction for those who do not.

Senator Ward asked if the one-third-sentence reduction is not an
i ncentive.

M. Richards responded the one-third reduction is already in place
and that nmaking additional good tinme available wuld be an
incentive and woul d be nore appropriate.

Co- Chair Donley noted the Executive Branch presented this option
when the earlier l|egislation was considered. He stressed Al aska
al ready has the highest good tine policy and he argued it is bad
public policy to rel ease inmates earlier.

Co-Chair Donley stated he would support a denonstration project
except that one could not be fairly inplenented within the crimna
justice system He addressed the suggestion of a |apse date,
informng that because this legislation only applies to those with
sentences |longer then two years and to those sentenced after the
effective date of the law, the effects would not be apparent for
several years. He noted the additional expenses would not be
incurred until the third year and any savings woul d not occur until
the fourth year of the new program

Senator Hoffman commented that adding nore avail able good tine
woul d allow "good people” who obtain a degree, to be released
earlier and becone nore productive. He surm sed this would result
in nore savings.

Senat or Leman referenced the analysis in the fiscal note relating

SFC- 02 (15) 02/ 26/ 02



to the cost of contractual services to adm nister the education
program He asked the current process for admnistering the GED
exam nati ons.

Ms. Munafo explained the fiscal note reflects the anticipated
additional testing to determine an individual's reading and
mat hematic | evel prior to enrollnment in a GED preparati on course.
She noted the fiscal note also includes additional "teacher tine",
based on 97 students per education provider the previous year and
the projected 111 additional students this |egislation would incur.

Senator Leman asked if the teachers would utilize an existing
literacy program

Ms. Munafo replied a programis in place that is simlar to that
used by adult |earning centers.

CANDACE BROVER, Legislative Liaison, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Corrections testified in Juneau, that although the
Department supports education as part of rehabilitation, it is
opposed to the approach contained in this |legislation. She stated
the Departnent currently provides successful educat i onal
opportunities and encourages inmates to inprove thenselves. She
anticipated | ess noney woul d be appropriated for the Departnent's
FY 03 budget and stated this |legislation would increase expenses.
She |isted the increase of 300 additional inmates since one year
ago and the increase of 919 inmates since 1996. She attributed the
i ncreases to statutory changes that increase sentences.

Ms. Brower cautioned against crimnalizing those who |ack an
education. She noted that nmany offenders receive education while on
supervised parole and she spoke to the limted resources for
educati onal prograns available to the Departnent.

Ms. Brower knew of no other state that nmakes education a condition
of early rel ease, although nmany offer incentive prograns.

Ms Brower informed the GED exam nati ons have been changed, are nore
ri gorous and she was unsure how i nmates woul d perform

Ms. Brower asserted that lowered recidivismis the result of a
nunber of factors, not only one program

Co-Chair Donley agreed recidivismis conplex, but stressed research
has shown the nunber one factor relates to the ability to read and
wite.

Senator Leman did not want dangerous crimnals released early.

SFC- 02 (16) 02/ 26/ 02



However, he wanted others to repay their debt to society in other
ways then being incarcerated in a prison facility.

Co- Chair Donley spoke to the argunment of positive incentive. He
told the history of increasing good tine from one-quarter of the
sentence to one-third, reiterating it is the highest rate in the
nation. He stated that this |egislation provides negative incentive
is msleading. He was nore inclined to provide additional good tine
for those who did not commt act of violence. He noted the current
good tine was increased to one-third was due to difficulties the
Department had wth tracking the different anount of good tine
available for different inmates convicted of different offenses. He
suggested this issue could be revisited to allow additional good
time for those offenders who did not commt a violent crine and who
received a GED during their incarceration

Co-Chair Kelly expressed support for the bill

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Comrmittee to await data
from the Departnent of Corrections to incorporate into a fisca
not e.

#SB97

SENATE BI LL NO. 97
"An Act relating to fees for probation and parole.”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.
Senator Ward testified this bill stipulates that probationers and

parol ees under the jurisdiction of the Departnent of Corrections
must participate in their rehabilitation by paying a portion of
their parole or probation expenses. He spoke to the high cost of
probation and parole to the governnent and stressed the primary
purpose of placing offenders on probation or parole is to secure
enpl oynent .

Senator Ward indicated other states have inplenmented simlar
prograns. He stated it has been shown that those affected of fenders
make the effort to stay enployed so they are able to pay the
necessary fees, and therefore avoiding returning to prison.

Senator Ward expressed the intention is not to create a debtor jail

and assured this legislation would not cause this. He noted
exceptions would be nmade for those who are unable to pay.

SFC- 02 (17) 02/ 26/ 02



Senator Ward predicted that despite victims conpensation and child
support paynents, a significant nunber of parol ees and probationers
woul d be eligible to receive a pernmanent fund dividend, which could
be garnished under this legislation for parole and probation
expenses.

Senator Ward poi nted out that various broad based taxes were under
consideration in part to pay for the expenses related to probation
and parol e.

Senator Ward remarked this legislation would benefit those on
probation and parole. He stated that lack of a job is one
"underlying ill" causing people to commt crinmes because of the
need to fill enptiness. He comrented this legislation offers a
met hod for offenders to "earn their way back into society".

Senator Ward nentioned the proposed interstate conpact relating to
nonitoring and admnistering probationers and parolees. He
predi cted other states would be review ng cost options as well.

Senator Ward commented this program could be cost-effective
provi ded the collection process is not made burdensonme requiring
the addition of significant staff.

Senator Ward noted that in states wth simlar prograns,
probati oners and parolees who fail to nake the necessary paynents
are usually in violation of other conditions of their release as
wel | .

Senat or Ward al so pointed out he proposed this system during the
Thirteenth Legislative Session, but was unsuccessful.

AT EASE 11:25 AM/ 11:31 AM

BRUCE RI CHARDS, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Comm ssioner

Department of Corrections testified via teleconference from
Anchorage about previous attenpts to require paynents from parol ees
and probationers and statutes to this effect that were in place
from 1986 to 1991. He stated the collection rate during that period
was approximately eight percent. He qualified the proposed
| egi sl ation stipulates collections would be perfornmed by a private
entity. However, he informed that past efforts to locate a
collection agency willing to assune these duties were unsuccessfu

because col |l ection agencies are "in the business of taking on bad
debt." Instead, he continued, a local financial institution was
enployed to establish an escrow account and to nail nonthly
statenents to parolees and probationers, but did not pursue
collection of |ate balances. Therefore, he stated, the fiscal note

SFC- 02 (18) 02/ 26/ 02



reflects a ten-percent <collection rate for the proposed
| egi sl ati on.

ROBERT BUTTCANE, Legislative and Adm nistrative Liaison, D vision
of Juvenile Justice, Departnent of Health and Social Services,
testified via teleconference from Anchorage to explain the
projected 80 percent collection rate reflected in this Departnent's
fiscal note. He shared that in-house discussions were held to
arrive at this estimate, that there is no quantitative basis for
this "subjective" assunption and that it is based on an "absol ute
best case scenario". He noted the Division has been successful in
obtaining 87.7 percent paynent rate in court-ordered restitution.
Because if this, he said, nost juvenile offenders could be
notivated to conply with expectations inposed on them

Co-Chair Donley asked M. Richards the current repaynment percentage
of restitution paynents ordered for adult offenders.

M. Richards indicated he woul d provide the information.

Co- Chair Donl ey had suggested the Departnent of Corrections fiscal
note should indicate that the nunber of new parolees and
probationers affected by this | egislation wuld be phased in over
several years.

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Conmittee.

ADJ QURNIVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 11:40 AM

SFC- 02 (19) 02/ 26/ 02



